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Court File No.: CV-16-11242-00CL

ONTARIO

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE
COMMERCIAL LIST

IN THE MATTER OF THE LIQUIDATION OF
LWP CAPITAL INC. PURSUANT TO

SECTION 211 OF THE
CANADA BU,S/N¿"SS CORPORATIONS AC?i R.S.C. 19850 c. C-44, AS AMENDED

and

KSV ADVISORY INC. IN ITS CAPACITY AS LIQUIDATOR OF LWP CAPITAL
INC.

Applicant

AFFIDAVIT OF JOEL HORN
(sworn January 612016)

I, JOEL HORN, of the City of Seattle, in the State of Washington, MAKE OATH AND

SAY AS FOLLOWS:

I have been the President of Legumex Walker Inc., now known as LWP Capital Inc. (the

"Company"), since April 20,2011. As such, I have personal knowledge of the matters

to which I depose in this Affidavit. Where I do not have personal knowledge of the

matters set out herein, I have stated the source of my information and, in all such cases,

believe it to be true. I also own, directly and indirectly, 385,032 common shares of the

Company ("Common Shares"), which represent approximately 2.4Yo of the total issued

and outstanding Common Shares.

OnNovember 9, 2015, the holders of the Common Shares approved by way of special

resolution the voluntary liquidation and dissolution of the Company pursuant to the

Canada Business Corporøtions Act (the "CBCA") and in accordance with the Plan of

Liquidation and Distribution, KSV Advisory Inc. was named as the liquidator of the

Company (the "Liquidator' ).
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Pursuant to the Plan of Liquidation and Distribution I am acting as an Inspector, effective

as of December 31, 2015 (the "Effective Date").

Attached as Exhibit o'4" to this Affidavit is a copy of the Company's audited financial

statements for the fiscal year ending December 31,2014 and its most recent unaudited

quarterly financial statements for the period ended September 30,2015.

As of December 31,2015, the Company does not have any known outstanding liabilities

other than: (i) those arising in the ordinary course from time to time, including, but not

limited to, telephone, internet, utilities, current wages and associated withholding taxes,

and sundry services which continue to be provided to the Company; (ii) certain amounts

owing to former employees; (iii) certain environmental remediation costs, which total is

expected to be less than CAD$700,000; plus (iv) the professional fees and disbursements

associated with these liquidation proceedings. I have been bringing (and intend to

continue to bring) to the Liquidator's attention these known payables as they arise in

order for them to be paid from the Liquidator's account.

Pursuant to an asset purchase agreement (the "APA") with The Scoular Company dated

September 14,2015, the Company sold or caused the sale of substantially all of the assets

of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Legumex V/alker Canada Inc., St. Hilaire Seed

Company, Inc. and Legumex Walker Sunflower LLC (individually, a "Vendor" and

collectively, the "Vendors"), as well as the Company's equity interest in Legumex

Walker China Ltd. and Legumex Walker (Tianjing) International Trading Ltd., for gross

proceeds of CAD$94 million, less closing and post-closing adjustments, plus CAD$71.5

million, being the net working capital (subject to adjustment) at the time of the closing of

the transaction (the o'Transaction"). The Transaction excluded the Company's cash, the

tax instalments paid by an applicable Vendor and the right to receive any refund of and/or

credit in respect of taxes paid by an applicable Vendor, all indebtedness owing to an

applicable Vendor by an affiliate or a shareholder, director, or officer of the affiliate,

employee plans, except for those of Legumex Walker China Limited and Legumex

V/alker (Tianjin) International Trading Ltd., assets that do not relate to, are not used in

and are not necessary for use in the business of an applicable Vendor, and certain
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accounts receivable and contracts. The Transaction did not include the divestiture of the

Company's indirect 84Yo interest in Pacific Coast Canola LLC ("PCC"). On January 5,

2016, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, LWI US Inc. (a V/ashington State

corporation) transfened its 84% interest in PCC to third parties for nominal

consideration, as disclosed in a press release of the Company dated January 5,2016, a

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "B".

Following such divestiture, the Company and its subsidiaries, namely Legumex Walker

USA Inc. (a Minnesota corporation), Legumex Walker Finance, Inc. (a Minnesota

corporation), St. Hilaire Seed Company, Inc. (a Minnesota corporation), Legumex

Walker Sunflower LLC (a Minnesota limited liability company), LWI Seattle, Inc. (a

Washington State corporation) and LWI US Inc. (a Washington State corporation) ceased

to carry on business.

A portion of the proceeds from the Transaction was disbursed to pay the Company's

insurance premiums, certain Transaction related costs, certain liabilities incurred before

closing of the Transaction, and certain costs incurred between closing of the Transaction

and the Effective Date of the liquidation, as well as to repay the Company's secured debt

obligations, including the Company's operating line and convertible debenture. After

making the aforementioned payments and disbursements, the Company held CAD$23.6

million and USD$7.1 million, including an amount of CAD$11.4 million that the

Company expects HSBC Bank of Canada to transfer to the Company. These cash

balances are in the process of being transferred to the Liquidator. To the best of my

knowledge and beliet this amount of cash, plus the anticipated realizations on accounts

receivable and certain other assets excluded from the Transaction, substantially exceeds

all of the Company's known outstanding obligations'

While the amount of the actual distribution to shareholders will depend on the results of

the claims process being recommended by the Liquidator in this Application and

Transaction related adjustments (if any), it is currently expected that the distribution to

holders of Common Shares will be in the range of CAD$1.69 to $1.98 per Common

Share per the Company's public disclosure of this estimated final distribution in press
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releases dated October 26,2015 and November 23,2015, copies of which are attached as

Exhibits "Coo and ooD", respectively.

This Affrdavit is made in support of the application by the Liquidator for relief under

section 211 of the Canada Business Corporation Act, and for no other improper purpose.

AFFIRMED BEFORE ME at the CitY

of Toronto" in the Province of Ontario,
thisFâay of January, 2016,

)
)
)
)
)
)Commissioner, etc. JOEL HORN
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lndependent Auditors' RePort

To the Shareholders of Legumex Walker lnc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legumex Walker lnc, and its subsidiaries, which comprise

the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31 , 2014 and 2013 and the consolidated

statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information'

M a n age m e nf 's Responslb i I ity for th e co n sol i d ated F i n a nc ial sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in

accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financialstatements based on our audits' We

conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement'

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation

and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Legumex Walker lnc, and its subsidiaries as at December 31,2014 and 2013, and their financial performance and

their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards.

Winnipeg, Manitoba

March 26,2015

NNP *',
Chartered Accountants

25OO-201 Portage Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba, R3B 3K6' Phone: (204) 775-4531,1 (877) 500-0795

MNN



Legumex Walker Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at
December 31,

20t4
December 31,

2013

Assets
Current

Cash

Restricted cash (Note 5)

Accounts receivable (Note 17)

Inventories (Note 6)
Prepaid expenses and other assets

31051
351

5L,624
73,LO6

2,90O

2,081
698

55,835
89,664

3,936

Non-current
Property, plant and equ¡pment (Note 7)
Intangible assets (Note Ba)

Investment in joint venture (Note 9)

Other non-current assets (Note Bb)

Deferred tax assets (Note 24)

131,032

162,153
2L,422

2,O23
2,856
2,2O8

L52,2t4

160,660
25,995

1,931

2,652
3,r47

Total assets 32t,694 346,599

Liabilities
Current

Short-term borrowings (Note 10)

Demand Loan (Note 11)

Accounts payable and accrued liab¡lities
Derivat¡ve liabilities (Note 17)
Income taxes payable

Borrowinqs due within one year (Note 12)

54t725
13,004
42ß34
3t54l

246
1O,088

58,229
L2,239
56,877
3,2t4

459

10,098

124,438 t4r,tL6

84,096

L3,6t4

Non-current
Non-current borrowings (Note 12)

Convertible debenture (Note 13)

Deferred tax liabllities (Note 24)

83,486
L2,454
,,2tl4o

Total Liabilities

Equity
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

Share capital (Note 14)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Convertible debenture - equity component (Note 13)

Contributed surplus
Deficit

232,518 826

L35,707
4,884

3,667
(40,648)

l35t707
71522
2,814
3,773

(62,824

Non-controlling interests (Note 15)

86,992
2,184

103,610
4,t63

Total 89,t76
32L,694

L07 773

46,599Tota liabilities and equity

Approved on behalf of the Board

/s/ Joel Horn /s/ Chris Schnarr

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Legumex Walker Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31, 20t4 2013

Revenues

Cost of Sales
Inputs and other processing costs

Depreciation and amortization (Note 7 and Note 8a)

467t947

(437,659)
(r1,042)

433,567

(413,053)

(9,549)

(44A,7Ot) (422,602)

Gross Profit 19,246 10,965

Selling, general and administrative exPenses (Note 18)

Selling and administrative

Depreciation and amortization (Note 7 and Note 8a)

(2tA72)
(6,L72)

(22,308)

5,62L)
27 644

Loss before other items and income taxes
Other income (expense) items
Earnings from investments in associate and joint venture

(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and olher assets

Legal settlement recovery (Note 6)

Foreign exchange (losses) and gains (Note 17)

(8,398)

91
(85)
508

(7,046)
(11,416)

L6,964)

L2L

599

(4,633)

(8,843)Flnance costs (Note 17)

Total other income (expense) items (L7,94A> (t2,756)

Loss before income taxes (26þ46) (2e, 20)7

Recovery of (provision for) income taxes
Current (Note 24)

Deferred (Note 24)

(74)
Lt376

(271)
L,37t

1r302 1,100

Net Loss ) (28,620)

Attributable to:
Non-controll ing interests

Shareholders of the ComPanY

(2,s45)
(22,499)

(3,24Q)

(25,380)

Net Loss

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items that may be reclassified into profit or loss

Unrealized gains (losses)
operations, net of tax

on translation of financial statements of foreign
2t948 3,161

(28,620

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 2,94fJ 3,16 1

Comprehensive loss, net of tax (22,O96) (2 5,459)

Attributable to:
Non-controlling interests

Shareholders of the Company

(2,256)
(19,84O)

(2,885)

(22,574)

Comprehensive loss, net of tax (22,096) (25,459)

Basic and diluted loss per share
(Note 20) (1.38) ( 1.56)

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Legumex Walker Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

Share cap¡tãl

(Note 14)

]-35,707

t35t707

L3S,707

comprehensive
rncome-

2,078

2,806

2,806

4,884

4ß84

2,659

2,659

Contributed
surplus Deficit

2,543 (15,268)

(25,380)

(2s,380)

L,OB4

3,667 ( 40,648)

3,6,67 (40,648)
(22,499)

(22,499)

106

323

Accumulated
other

Convertible
debentures -

equity
component

2,8t4

Total
shareholders'

equ¡ty

Non-
controlling
interests Total equ¡ty

As at December 31, 2012

Net Loss3

Other Comprehens¡ve loss, net of ta*
Comprehensive loss, net of tax

Share-based compensat¡on (Note 19)

As at December 31, 2O13

As at January t,2OL4
Net Loss3

Other comprehensive ¡ncome, net of taxz

Comprehensive loss, net of tax

Share-based compensation (Note 19)

Convertible debenture issuance4 (Note 13)

Transaction with non-controlling interest
(Note 15)

125,100

(25,380)

2,806

(22,s74)

1,084

103,61O

103,61O

(22,4ee)

2,659

(19,840)

106

2,8t4

7,048

(3,240)

355

4,t6,3
(2,s4s)

289

(2,2s6)

277

2,L84

132,t48

(28,620)

3,L61

!o7,773
(25,O44)

2,948
(22,096)

106

2,8!4

579

89,A76

(2,BBs) (25,459)

1,084

4,L63 LO7,773

(21) 302

As at December 31' 2014 t3s,707 7,522 2ß14 3,773 (62ß24) 86,992

lAccumulated other comprehensive ¡ncome consists of unrealized gains (losses) on translation of financial statements of foreign operations.
zother comprehensive income (loss) consists of change in unrealized gains (losses) on translation of financial statements of foreign operat¡ons.
3Net loss includes share-based compensat¡on and other options ¡ssues.
aNet of issuance costs

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Legumex Walker Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended
December 31, December 31,

20L4 20t3

Cash provided by (used for) the following activities

Operating Activities
Net LoSS

Depreciation and amortization (Note 7 and Note Ba)

Non-cash finance costs

Deferred income taxes

Earnings from investments in associate and joint venture

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and other assets

Non-cash loss on derivative financial instruments (Note 17)

Non-cash foreign exchange (gain)

Share-based compensat¡on (Note 19)

(25,O44)
17t2L4
t,28t

(t,376)
(e1)
85

335

Q.t547)
106

(28,620)

L5,t70
460

(L,37 L)

( 121)

(sse)

3,2L4
(ees)

1,084

Net changes in working capital accounts (Note 25)

(9,O37)
9,384

(Lr,77B)
1,054

Cash flow provid ed by (used) in operating activities 347 (L0,724)

Financing Activities
(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings

Advances of non-current borrowings

Proceeds of debenture issuance, net of ¡ssuance costs (Note 13)

Repayments of non-current borrowings

Debt financing costs

(5,242)
4t297

16,193
(11,s46)

(222)
1,103

9,732

9,589

(4,010)

(s06)

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary share (Note 15)

Cash flow provided by financing activities 4,583 14,805

Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of intangible assets (Note 8a)

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash

Increase in other non-current assets

(3,795)
590

(e2o)
397

(332)

(7,882)
Lt274

(618)

(442)
(281)

Cash flow used in investing activities (4,060) (7,949)

Increase (decrease) in cash f,70 (3,868)

Cash position, beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

21081

100

5,798

151

Cash position, end of year 3,051 2,08L

Supplementary cash flow information
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

The accompanying notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements

(9,579)
(213)

(7,229)

3,793
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Legumex Walker Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the vears ended Decemher 31. 2014 and 2013

1. Corporate information

Legumex Walker Inc. ("LWI") was incorporated under the laws of Canada on April ZO, ZOlf .Its registered office is located
atlg¿S Kenaston Bouievard, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada, The Company's common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange under the symbol "LWP".

LWI is a growth-oriented processor and merchandiser of pulses (lentils, peas, beans and chickpeas) and other special crops
with processing facilities in the Canadian Prairies, American Midwest and China, In addition, LWI has an 84 percent interest
in Pacific Coast Canola LLC ("PCC"), a canola oilseed processing facility in the State of Washington in the USA.

Included in these consolidated financial statements are the accounts of LWI and all of its incorporated subsidiary companies;
together LWI and its subsidiaries are referred to as the "Company".

The Company's earnings follow the seasonal pattern of special crops production in each gèographic location. In the United
States and Canada, the growing season for major agricultural commodities spans from May to October, Pulses and other
special crops are typically seeded in May, harvested in late-August to early October and marketed throughout the year. The
timing and volume of sales and shipments in a given year may be influenced by factors such as global supply and demand
conditions, timing of harvest, crop size and quality, expectations of commodity prices in the near- and long-term, foreign
exchange rates and the cost and availability of transportation eguipment (railcars, trucks and ocean contalners) requ¡red to
get product to market,

Canola producers in the Pacific Northwest have the option of growing the crop as either a spring or a winter crop' Spring
canola is generally seeded in April and harvested in September, whereas winter canola is generally seeded in September and

harvested in July. Harvested canola is consolidated in large storage terminals and is stored until needed,

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), The consolidated financial statements of the
Company were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 26,20L5.

Basis of presentation and measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and have been presented in Canadian dollars
rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise indicated. The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

' These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convent¡on with the exception of derivative
financial instruments which are recorded at fair value,

Prì nci pl es of consol i dation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LWI and its subsidiaries Legumex WalkerCanada Inc, ("LWC")
(including its subsidiary Legumex Walker China Ltd. and its subsidiary Legumex Walker (Tianjin) International Trading Ltd')
ànd t-egJmex Walker USA,-Inc, (including its subsidiary Legumex Walker Finance, Inc. and its subsidiaries St, Hilaire Seed

Compañy, Inc. ("SHS"), Legumex Walker Sunflower LLC ("LWS"), LWI US Inc, (including its subsidiary PCC) and LWI Seattle,
Inc.)', Sulisidiarìes are'ownê¿ f OO percent except for PCC which is owned 84 percent (2013 - 85 percent). The Company has

a 5O percent equity intere stin 0729767 BC Ltd. Subsidiaries are entities controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the Company'

Control ex¡sts when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefit from its activities and generally accompanies a shareholding of more than 500/0. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases, The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as LWI,

using consistent accounting policies, All intercompany balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains and losses from
intercompany transactions are eliminated in full.

Translation of foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of LWI. Forthese
consolidated financial statements the functional currency of LWC is the Canadian dollar, the functional currency of SHS, LWS

and PCC is the US dollar and the functional currency of Legumex Walker China is the Hong Kong dollar'
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Legumex Walker Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31. 2014 and 2013

Changes in accounting polÍcies

The Company adopted the narrow scope amendments for IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, IAS 36 Impairment
of Assetsl as well as the guidance in IFRIC 21, Levies effective January 1,20t4. The adoption did not have a significant
effect on the Company's financial statements'

lJse of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and

assuinpiions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and judgments applied in the preparation of the
financial statements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised when the underlying assumpt¡ons change. The effects of
revisions to est¡mates are recognized in the period in whlch the estimate is revised and any subsequent period affected'
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately
may differ from these estimates.

The following is an analysis of the critical accounting estimates that depend most heavily on such management estimates,
assumptionJand judgments, any changes, which may have a material impact on the Company's financial condition or results

of operations,

Cash generating units

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows. Management determines which groups of assets are capable of generating cash inflows that are largely
independent of otherãperations within the Company. To create these groupingsf management makes critical judgments about
wheie active markets exist including an analysis of the degree of autonomy various operations have in negotiating prices with
customers,

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Due to the nature of LWI's business and the credit terms it provides to its customers, estimates and judgments are inherent
in the on-going assessment of the recoverability of some accounts receivable. LWI maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts

to reflectLxpõcted credit losses, Judgment is required to assess the ultimate realization of accounts receivable and these
judgments must be continuously evaluated and updated. LWI is not able to predict changes in the financial conditions of its
iustomers and the Company's judgment related to the recoverability of accounts receivable may be materially impacted if
the financial condition oi tné cómpany's customers deteriorates. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts included in
either the Oilseed Processing segment or the Corporate segment for the years ended December 3L,2OL4 and December 31,

20L3,

Valuation of inventory

Assessments and judgments are inherent ¡n the determination of the net realizable value of inventories. The cost of inventories
may not be fully iecõverable if they are damaged or if the selling price of the inventory is less than its cost' LWI regularly
reviews its inventory quantities and reduces the cost attributed to inventory no longer deemed to be fully recoverable' Judgment
related to the determìnation of net realizable value may be impacted by a number of factors including market conditions.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where a valuation model is used to determine the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities, it makes maximum use

of observable inputs, Where observable inputs are not available a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about
thesä faitors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments, The valuation techniques used by the Company are

described in further detail in the Significant Accounting Policies note.

Valuation of long-lived assefs and asset impairment

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are based on management's judgment and

experience. When management iOént¡f¡es that the actual useful lives for these assets differ materially from the estimates used

to talculate depreciationãnd amort¡zation, that change is adjusted prospectively. Due to the significance of capital investment
to the Company, variations between actual and esÈimated useful lives could impact operating results both positively and

negatively. 
'Assét 

lives, depreciation and amortization methods, and residual values are reviewed periodically.

The Company periodically assesses the recoverability of values assigned to long-lived assets after considering potent¡al

impairment ¡ndicateO by such factors as significant changes in technological, market, economic or legal environment, business

anä market trends, future prospects, current market value and other economic factors. In performing its review of recoverability,
management estimates either the value in use or fair value less costs to sell,
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Legumex Walker Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the vears ended December 31- 2014 and 2013

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in severaljurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes and the Company's income tax provisions reflect management's interpretation of country-specific
tax law. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business and may remain uncertain for several years after their occurrence, The Company recognizes assets and

liabilities for taxation when it is probable that the relevant taxation authority will require the Company to receive or pay taxes.
Where the final outcome of the determination of tax assets and liabilities is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income taxes provis¡on ¡n the period in which such determination
is made. Changes in tax law or changes in the way tax law is interpreted may also impact the Company's effective tax rate
as well as its business and operations,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying value of assets and liabilities and their respective income tax bases,

Deferred income tax assets or liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
calculation of current and deferred income taxes requires management to make estimates and assumptions and to exercise
a certain amount of judgment concerning the carrying value of assets and liabilities, The current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are also impacted by expectations about future operating results and the tim¡ng of reversal of temporary
differences as well as possible audits of tax filings by regulatory agencies. Changes or differences in these estimates or
assumptions may result in changes to the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities on the consolidated statements of
financial position and a charge to or recovery of income tax expense'

Functional currency

The Company determines the functional currency for each entity and for jointly controlled entities and associates. This requires
the assessment of the primary econom¡c environment in which each of these entities operates, The determination of functional
currency affects how the Company translates foreign currency balances and transactions, In determining the functional
currency in Canada (Canadian dollar), United States (US dollar), Hong Kong (Hong Kong dollar) and People's Republic of China

(Renminbi) the Company considered the currency that primarily influences or determines the selling prices of goods and

iervices and the cost of production, including labour, material and other costs and the currency whose competitive forces and

regulations mainly determine selling prices.

Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of share-based payments to employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date on which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transact¡ons requires determining the
most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant, This estimate also requires
the determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility
anddividendyieldandmakingassumptionsaboutthem. Theassumptionsandmodelsusedforestimatingfairvalueofshare-
based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 19,

3. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below' These
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Jo¡nt ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Company and other parties undertake an economic activity through
a jointly controlled entity, Joint control exists when strategic, financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities
require'the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equ¡ty method.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value

of the assets given, equity instruments and liabilities incurred or assumed at the acquisition date. Acquisition costs for business

combinationJare expensed and included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value at the date of
acquisition.

Fore ig n cu rren çy tra n slatio n

Each entity in the Company determ¡nes its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each

entity are measured using that functional currency, Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company's
entities in their respective functional currency at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction'
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Monetary items are translated atthe functional currency spot rate as ofthe reporting date, Exchange diiferences from monetary
items are recognized in prof¡t or loss. Non-monetary items that are not carried at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined,

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date and their statements of comprehensive income are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange, The
exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities ar¡sing on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the reporting date,

Cash

Cash in the statement of financial position consists of cash at banks and on hand,

Inventorìes

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and
includes the cost of raw materials, freight, and processing charges. Inventories are written down to net realizable value when
the cost of inventories is estimated to be unrecoverable due to damage or declining prices. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling costs. When circumstances that
previously required inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist, the amount of the write-down is reversed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any, Cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are requ¡red to be replaced in
intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciat¡on, respectively. All

other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred,

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset less its residual value, Depreciation
is recognized on a straight-line basis overthe estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and site improvements 15-50 years

Machinery and equipment 4-40 years

Motor vehicles 10-15 Years

Office furniture and equipment 4-10 years

An ¡tem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

The assets' useful lives and methods of depreciation of assets are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate, No depreciation is taken on construction in progress until the asset ¡s available for use, Amounts
representing direct costs incurred for major overhauls are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the
different components replaced.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time, which the Company considers to be 12 months or more, to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized
as part of the cost of the respective assets, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

l,eases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on whether fulfillment of the arrangement is

dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased

item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present

value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
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liability so as to achieve a constant rate of ¡nterest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized
in finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Howeveç if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset and the lease term,

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

IntangÍble assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business comb¡nation is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed as either finite or indefinite, Intangible assets w¡th finite useful lives are amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment wheneverthere is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization method
and amortization period of an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least annually. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in account¡ng estimates. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the CGU level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life cont¡nues to
be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Finite life intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as
follows:

Rights and brands

Customer and producer relationships

Software

Other intangibles

Internally generated software

3-10 years

3-7 years

3-B years

5-10 years

3-B years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset
is derecognized,

I m pa i rme nt of non -fi n a nci a I assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If such an
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Where it is not possible to est¡mate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs, Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU's, or they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU's for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impa¡red and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Value in use is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the specific risks of the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used, The recoverable amount of assets that do not generate independent cash flows is determined based
on the CGU to which the asset belongs,

The Company bases its ¡mpairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income if an asset's carrying amount or that of the CGU
to which it is allocated is higher than its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of CGUs are first charged against the carrying
value of the goodwill balance included in the CGU and then against the value of the other assets, in proportion to their carrying
amount. In the statement of comprehensive income the impairment losses are recognized in those expense categories
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consistent with the function of the impaired asset'

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognizeidìmpairment losses may no longerexist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company

ästimates the jsset's or CGU's recoverable amount, A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has

been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was

recognized. fhe reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor

exce'ed the carrying amount that would have been deteimined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized

for the asset in priór years. Such a reversal is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at December 31 and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may

be impaired. Impairmeni is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount o.f each CGU to which the goodwill

relatei. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized, Impairment

losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods'

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at December 31 either individually or at

the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

FinancÍal instruments

Financial assefs and liabilities

The Company classifies its financial assets as Ii] financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, Iii] loansand receivables

or Iiii] availa'ble-for-sale, and its financial liabilities as either Ii] financial liabilities at fair v'alue through profit or loss or Iii]
other financial liabilities (Note 17c). Appropriate classification õf financ¡al assets and liabilities is determined at the time of

initial recognition or when reclassified in the statement of financial position.

Financial instruments are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financialassefs at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

Financial assets at FVTpL include financial assets held-for-trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as

FVTPL. Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired forthe purpose of selling or repurchasing in the

near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into that are not designated as hedging instruments

in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized

in finance costs in the statement of comprehenslve income. Transaction costs on FVTPL are expensed as incurred,

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic

characteristics and risks are not closely related to those ofthe host contracts and the host contracts are not held-for-trading'
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of comprehensive

¡ncome. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows

that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

market. Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently measured

at amortized cgst using the effective interest metnod less any impairment. The effective interest amortizat¡on is included in

finance costs in the sta'tement of comprehensive income, The losses arislng from impairment are recognized in the statement

of comprehensive income in finance costs.

Ava i la ble-fo r'sa le fi na ncia I i nvestments

Available-for-sale financial investments include equity and debt securities, Equity investments classified as available-for-sale

are those which are neither classified as held-for-traàing nor designated as FVTPL. Debt securities in this category are those

which are intended to be held for an indefinite period oitime andwhich may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in the market conditions'

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, After

initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealized gains

or losses recognlzed as other comprehensive ¡ncome in the available-for-sale reserve until the investment is derecognized,

or determined to be impaired, at wn¡cn time the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified to the statement of comprehensive

income and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been

recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment us.ing the effective interest method.
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Any difference between the new amortized cost and the expected cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest method, If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or when the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assefs

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, an incurred 'loss event', and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant, If
the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial assetr it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the diiference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss, The interest income is
recorded as part of finance costs,

Loans and receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery. If, in a subsequent yea[ the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impa¡rment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs.

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Company assesses at each reportlng date whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fairvalue of the investment below its cost, 'Significant'
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and 'prolonged' against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost, Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income, is removed from other comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly
in other comprehensive income, In the case of debt instruments classif¡ed as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based
on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative lôss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value
of a debt instrument ¡ncreases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, the impairment loss is reversed,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at FVTPL, Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial ¡nstruments entered into by the Company that are not deslgnated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Other fi na ncia I I ia b i I ities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All financial l¡abilities are initially
measured at fair value. For the demand loan and long-term debt, fair value represents the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred, Transaction costs related to the demand loan and long-term debt instruments are included in the
value of the instruments and amortized using the effective interest method. The effective interest expense is included in
finance costs.
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Co n ve rti b le d e be ntu res

The convertible debentures of the Company are compound instruments that contain a convers¡on feature to the debentureholder
to convert debenture principal into Shares of the Company. The debenture obligation is classified partly as debt and partly as

equity. The debt component represents the present value of interest and principal payments over the expected life of the
convertible debentures discounted at a rate approximating the rate which would have been applicable to non-convertible
debentures at the time the convertible debentures were issued, The residual between the principal amount of the convertible
debentures and the present value of interest and principal payments overthe expected life ofthe convertible debentures (the

equity component) is accreted over the term of the convertible debentures through periodic charges to the debt component,
such that, on maturity, the debt component equals the principal amount of the convertible debentures outstanding, Transaction

costs incurred are proportionately allocated to the debt and equity components. Fortax purposes a taxable temporary difference
will result as the tax base of the convertible debentures is the face value of the notes while'the accounting base is described
above. This difference is considered temporary resulting in a deferred tax liability.

Fi n a n ci a I ¡ nstru m e nt cla ss ificatio n

The Company has designated its cash, restricted cash, derivative assets, short-term borrowings, and derivative liabilities as

FVTPL; accounts receivable as loans and receivables; accounts payable and accrued liabilities, demand loan, the debt component
of the convertible debenture and non-current borrowings as other financial liabilities'

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation underthe liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing tia-Oitity are substantially modified, such an exchange ormodification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and 

-the 
recôgnition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the

statement of comprehensive income,

Interest income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, ¡nterest ¡ncome or expense is recorded using the effective interest
method, which ls the rate that discounts the est¡mated future cash payments or rece¡pts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability'
Interest income and expense is included in finance cost.

De riva ti ve ¡ n st ru m e nts

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, Such as commodity and foreign currency futures contracts, to manage

its exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign currencies. The Company has not accounted for these instruments
using hedge accounting, Derivatives are recognized initially atfairvalue; attributabletransaction costs are recognized in profit
or lols aslncurred, The company has designated its derivatives as financial assets at FVTPL and financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

The Company analyzes all of its contracts, of both a financial and non-financial nature, .to identify the existence of any

',embeddèd" derivatives. Embedded derivatives are accounted for separately from the host contract at the inception date when

their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at

fair value.

Fair value of financial instruments

For those financial instruments where fair value is recognized ¡n the statement of financial position the methods and assumptions
used to develop fair value measurements have been classified into one of the three levels of the fair value hierarchy for
financial instruments :

o Level l includes quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities'
r Level 2 includes inputs that are observable other than quoted prices included in Level 1.

. Level 3 includes inputs that are not based on observable market data'

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

. Cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable, short-term borrowings and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments'

e The fair value of unquoted instruments, demand loans, long-term debt, obligations under finance leases, convertible
debentures and otherfinancial liabilities, as well as non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash

flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities'
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. The company enters into derivative financial instruments with financial institut¡ons. Exchange-traded derivatives, including

rorãign excrrãnge forward contracts, put opt¡ons and call options, and commodity future contracts, are valued using

valuation techniques with market observabli¡ inputs, such as brokerquotesfor similarcontracttraded in an act¡ve market

where the quotes reflect actual transactions for simìlar instruments. Valuation techniques also incorporate various inputs

including foreign exchange spot and forward rates and commodity forward rates'

Provísions

provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation, legal or constructive,.as a result of a past event, it is
próouol" that an oút1o* of resources 

"moooying 
etonomic beñerits will-be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligat-ion, where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,

for example under an insurance contract, the reilmbursement is recognized as a separate ass-et'but only when the reimbursement

ii uirtruriv certain. The expense relating to any provision is preserited in the statement of comprehensive incomei net of any

reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate

that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. wherè discounting is used, the increase in the provision due

to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Earnings per share

The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

pàriod, o¡lrt"O earnings per share are computed in a similar way to basic earnings per share except that the weighted average

shares outstanding are increased to include additional shares assuming the exercise of share options or warrants, if dilutive'

Revenue recognitíon

The company recognizes revenuef primarily from the sale of go-ods, net of trade discounts, rebates and other similar allowances'

Revenue from the sale-ór goòor ¡r'recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the customer,

it is probable that the ecoñomic benefiis associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the costs incurred in

respect of the transaction and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. These conditions are generally satisfied when

title passes to the customer in accordance with the contract termsf which in most cases is when the product is picked up by

the customer or delivered to a destination specified by the customet typically a customer's premises, the vessel, railcar or

truck on which the product will be shipped or tne oestínation port. other revenues are recognized as earned,

where the company,s role in a transaction is that of an agent, the company recognizes revenue on a net basis with revenue

representing the margin earned. on october 27,20L4 ihe coman-y's subsidiary PCC entered into a processing agreement

which transferred the r¡gñii¡.unt risks and l."*urä, of ownerhsip of the canola seed inventory processed by Îcç.to a third

puitv (llotu 15), As a ieäuli, runag"ment determined PCC wai acting as an agent under this agreement and all revenues

äurni,ì by pCC subsequent to October 27, 2Ot4 are recorded on a net basis.

Income taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries are generally taxable under the statutes of their country of incorporation'

current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered

from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted

or substantively enacteJ at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income'

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of

comprehensive ¡ncomè.-ùâñagement perioðically evaluatãs positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in

wniifr appl¡cable tax regutai¡oñs are süb¡ect to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate'

The Company follows the liability method of accounting for deferred taxes. Under this method, income tax liabilities and assets

are recognized for the estimated tax consequen.us aitributable to the temporary differences between the carrying value of

the asse[s and liabilities on the financial statements and their respective tax bases.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill o1 of 9¡ asset or liability in a transact¡on that

is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, aifects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss.

. In respect of taxable temporary dilferences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal

of the temporary diflerences can oe contiõliã¿ and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused

tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will óe available against which the deductible temporary differences

àÀ¿ tf'u cárryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized'
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probabte thãt sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized

beferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tãx assetto be recovered, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured atthe
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and

tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current income tax assets

against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

T¡lx benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date,

would be recognized subsequently if information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustmentwould either be

treated as a reãuction to goodwill if it occurred during the measurement period or in the statement of comprehensive income,

when it occurs subsequent to the measurement period'

Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except where the sales tax incurred on a

purchase of aisets or services is not recovórable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part

of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable and where receivables and payables are

stated with the amount of sales tax included,

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position'

Sha re-based comPensation Pla n

Employees of the Company may receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees

render services and receive consideration in the form of equity instruments,

Eq u ity-settl ed tra n sa ctio n s

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in contributed surplus, ¡n equity,

over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.

The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting period reflects the

extent to which the vesting pe'riod has expireO and the Company's best estimate of the number of the shares that will ultimately

vest, The expense or.r"á¡i recognized for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the

beginning and end of that period and is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income'

When options and other share-based compensation awards are exercised or exchanged, the amounts previously credited to

contributed surplus are reversed and credited to shareholders' equity. The amount of cash, if any, received from participants

is also credited to shareholders' equity'

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per

share.

Re porta ble bu si ness seg me nts

A reportable business segment is a component of the company that engages in business activitles from which it may earn

revenues and incur expeÁses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other

segments, All operating segments'opdrating results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Chief Executive officer to make

deãisions about resources tó be allocated to tñe segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information

is available,

The Company is managed as three business segments, Special Crops, Oilseed Processing and Corporate.

Special Crops

LWI,s portfolio of special crop products includes various grades. of pulses, including_, lentils, whole and split peas, beans and

chickpeas, as well as other'special crops, such as canaiyseed, flaxseed and sunflower seed, LWI sources product from a
netwörk of growers primarily in Canada and processes these crops at its 14 processing facilities strategically located in key

growing regions throughout ðaskatchewan, Manitoba and Minnesota and through an established network of third party custom

þrocessing facilities in Canada, the United States and China'

Oilseed Processing

LWI'S Oilseed Processing segment consists of an 84 percent interest in PCC.
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Corporate

LWI'S Corporate segment is a non-operating segment consisting of costs related to executive, finance, treasury, human
resources, legal, information technology, governance, professional fees and other corporate development costs'

Investment tax credits

Federal and provincial investment tax credits are accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the related assets or expenditures
in the year in which the credits are earned and when there is reasonable assurance that the credits can be used to recover

taxes,

4. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

The IASB has issued several new standards and amendments that will be effective on various dates, The listing below is of standards,
interpretatiòns and amendments issued which the Company reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date, The Company

intends to adopt those standards when they become effective, The impact on the Company is currently being assessed'

Financial Instruments I*IFRS 9"]

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets and financial liabilities. Under IFRS 9, financial
assets are classified and measured based on the duslness model in which they are held and the characteristics of their contractual
cash flows. IFRS 9 also introduced additional changes related to financial liabilities. The standard is effective for annual perlods

beginning on or after January 1, 2018'

Revenue Í"IFRS fs"I
In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, a new standard that specifies the steps and

timing for entit¡es to recognize revenue as well as requiring them to provide more informative, relevant disclosures, IFRS 15

supeisedes IAS 11, Customer Contracts, and IAS 18, Revenue, as well as various IFRIC and SIC interpretations regarding revenue,

Adbption of IFRS 15 is mandatory and will þe effective for the Company beginning on January I, 20L7, with earlier adoption
permitted, The Company is assessing the impact of adopting this standard on its financial statements'

5. Restricted cash

Under the terms of certain of the Company's derivative instruments agreements relating to commodity and currency futures contracts,
the Company is required to maintain a margin account which acts as collateral to settle any potent¡al liability associated with its

futures contracts.

6. Inventories

As at
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

December 31,
20t4

December 31,

20L3

Raw materials

Special crops

Oilseed processing

51r578 58,453

7,57t
51,578 66,024

Finished product

Special crops

Oilseed processing

18,349 19,530

t,2L9

Supplies and materials

18,349
3,179

20,749
2,89L

73'106 89,664

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 was

$415,951,000 (2013 - $3BB;594,000), For the year ended December 31, 2014, cost of sales included inventory write-downs
to net reálizable value of 9292,ó00 (zots - 996,000) and reversals of inventory previously written-down to net realizable

value of $nil (2013 - $nil),

On October 2Z,2OL4 LWI's subsidiary PCC entered into a long-term strategic alliance withThe Scoular Company, Underthis
new arrangement The Scoular Company retains legal ownership of inventory processed by PCC, accordingly PCC has not
recorded any inventory on its statement of financial posit¡on at December 3I,20L4'

In the third quarter of 2OL4 the company recovered 9508,000 related to a claim filed against a supplier for an inventory loss

which occurred in the third quarter of 20L2,
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(thousands of Canadian dollars)

7, Property, plant and equipment

(thousands
dollars)

of Canadian
Land

Buildings and
site

improvements

Machinery
and

equipment

Office
furn iture

and
equipment

Construction
Motor

vehicles
in progress

("crP') Total

Cost
As at December 31, 2013

Additions (1)

Transfers from CIP

Disposals

Effects of changes in
exchange rates

Lt717

26

601298

6
530

(130)

lo8r54O
2Lt

4t2O4
(461)

Lt2O6 1,644
39

498
(73)

'45

2,739
3r335

(5,289)

26

t76tL44
31591

3,944 6,732

57
(le2)

25

(856)

lot79f3
As at December 3I, 20t4 Lt743 6+648 tt9t226 I,096 2t153 811 t89,677
Accumulated depreciation
As at December 31, 2013

Depreciation

Disposals

Effects of changes in
exchange rates

3,942
3tO78

(18)

3L4

lor625
7t559

(76)

684

372
215
(s4)

10

545
342
(33)

19

15,484
lLtlg4

(181)

L,O27
As at December 3t,2OL4 7t3L6 18,792 543 873 27,524
Net carrying amount
As at December 3L,20L4 rt743 57,332 LOOA34 553 1,280 811 162,153

(1) Additions of $3,795,000 are presented net of lnvestment tax credits of $204,000

(thousands of Canadian
dollars) Land

Buildings and
site

improvements

Machinery
and

equipment

Office
furn iture

and
equipment

Construct¡on
Motor

vehicles
in progress

('cIP") Total

Cost

As at December 3t,2QL2
Additions

Transfers from CIP

Disposa ls

Effects of changes in
exchange rates

1,311

6

(t24)
(6)

L,344

249

20

1,887

111

56,401

25L

1,301

(400)

2,745

92,662

1,861

9,388

(2s)

7,746

5,445

( 10,585)

161,35 1

7,923

(2e7)

16 4,658 19 31 133

(732)

7,602

As at December 31, 2013 t,7t7 60,298 108,540 L,206 L,644 2,739 t76,t44
Accumulated depreciation
As at December 3I, 20L2

Depreciation

Disposals

Effects of changes in
exchange rates

L,L52

2,760
(47)

3,874

6,4L0
(7)

L82

r87
(2)

245 5,453

9,651

(s6)

43677 348 5

?e4

6

As at December 31, 2013 3,942 10,625 372 545 15,484

Net carry¡ng amount
As at December 31, 2013 L,7L7 56,356 97,915 834 1,099 2,739 160,660

The PCC canola crushing plant asset includes construction costs as well as capitalized borrowing costs of $nil incurred during
the year ended December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2Ot3 - $41,000),

As of December 3t,20L4, the net carrying amount of assets under finance leases included in propert¿ plant and equipment
was $4,866,000 (December 31, 2013- $4,167,000).
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8. Non-current assets

[a] Intangtble assets

(thousands of Canadian dollars)
Internally Other intangiblegenerated assets Total

Cost
As at December 31, 2013

Additions
Effect of changes in exchange rates

2,130

68

37,54L
920
816

39t67t
920
884

As at December 31, 2014 2tr98 39,277 4t,475

Accumulated amoÉization
As at December 31, 2013

Amortization
Effect of changes in exchange rates

534
752

34

L3tt42
5,268

323

L3t676
6rO2O

357

As at December 31, 2014 11320 t8,733 20,053

Net carrying amount
As at December 3t, 20L4 878 20,544 2t,422

Internally
generated

Other intangible
assets Total(thousands of Canadian dollars)

Cost
As at December 3L, 2Ot2

Additions
Elfect of changes in exchange rates

L,392
695

43

36,963

578

38,355
695
621

As at December 31, 2013 2,L30 37,54t 39,67r

Accumulated amoÉization
As at December 3t, 2Qt2

Amortization
Transfer from CIP

Effect of changes in exchange rates

55

480
46

(47)

7,985
5,038

(46)
165

8,040
5,518

118

As at December 31, 2013 534 t3,L42 L3,676

Net carrying amount
As at December 31 20 13 1,596 24,399 25 995

The other intangible assets include brands, rights, software, customer lists, customer relationships and producer relationships

from business acquisitions in 2011 and 20L2'

[b] Other non-current assets

other non-current assets include deferred financing costs related to the Macquarie credit facility described in Note 10 and

deferred rent related to the lease of land for the pciplant site, The deferred rent asset results from land lease payments that

decrease over time but must be expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

In connection with The Scoular Company's ("Scoular") financing of all PCC seed purchases which took effect october 27,20t4
(Note 15), pCC extinguished the Macquiie ðredit facilities previously.used to finance the purchase of inventory' In connection

*¡tr' tnu tärminat¡onãf these credit fácilities the Company expensed deferred financing costs of $364,000.
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[c] Impairment

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment regularly, with detailed impairment testing carried at least annually, For the
purposes of impairment testing, intangible assets are allocated at the lowest level of CGU where independent cash flows exist,
Management has determined that Company's operating segments (Special Crops and Oilseeds) are its cash generating units,
The recoverable amount of the units was based on the value in use of the CGU to which assets had been allocated. The value
in use was determined by discounting management's estimate otthe expected cash flows to be generated through continuing
use of the CGU.

Key assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amounts are the discount rates and the budgeted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA"), Discount rates are pre-tax measures that reflect risks specific to
the CGU based on the weighted average cost of capital for that CGU. The Company used EBITDA as an approximation for
baseline cash flows, Budgeted EBITDA was projected based on the Company's 2015 budget which incorporated management's
past experience and best estimates of future performance and conditions including future macro economic events, Possible
changes in key assumptions such as the average annual cash-flow growth rate, or the discount rate could cause recoverable
amounts to be less than the carrying value.

9. Investment in joint venture

In these financial statements the term joint venture refers to the Company's 50o/o ownership interest in 0729767 B,C. Ltd
which owns a single rental property in Richmond, British Columbia

The summary financial data for the Company's joint venture is as follows:

As at December 31, December 31,

(thousands of Canadian dollars) 2OI4 20L3

Current assets

Long-term assets

57
8,288

64

8,563

Total assets 8,345 8,627

Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

638
6,726

755

7,2L6

Total liabilities 7,364 7,97L

For the year ended
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

December 31,
2fJL4

December 31,
20L3

Revenue
Expenses

624
(4421

643
(401)

Net income 182 242

1O, Short-term borrowings

As at
(thousands of CanadÌan dollars)

December 31,
20t4

46,300
8,425

December 31,

2013

46,999

6,543

Operati ng credit facilities

Legumex Walker Canada Inc. (a) (c)

Legumex Walker ç¡¡nu ¡¡¿. {u) (c)

54,725 53,542

4,687Inventory repurchase commitments (t)

Short-term borrowings 54,725 5B 229

(a) The credit facilities authorize two operating lines for a maximum of CDN $54,000,000 and USD $10,000,000 respectively' The
facilities bear interest at the bank's prime lending rate plus 1,0 percent on Canadian dollar advances and at the bank's US base
rate plus 1,0 percent on US dollar advances. The line is secured by a general security agreement subject to a prior charge from
the holder of the term debt (Note 12),

1B



Legumex Walker Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(b) Credit facility authorizes a combined credit limit up to a maximum of USD $7,750,000 plus a USD $2,000,000 Invoice Discounting
and Factoring Agreement, The facility bears interest at a variable rate plus 1.5 percent.

(c) Ihe Company is subject to a number of financial and business covenants imposed under the terms of the credit facilities with its
financial ¡nstitutions and other debt holders, As at December 3L, 20L4, the Company was in compliance with its debt covenants,

On January 8,20L4 the Company's subsidiary PCC entered into agreements with Macquarie Bank Limited ("Macquarie Bank")
that provide additional liquidity of up to US$45,000,000. The agreements include: 1) a 3-year US$10,000,000 borrowing
facility for working capital purposes, at market interest rates, with annual renewals; 2) a US$15,000,000 hedging line that
allows PCC to enter into forward purchase and sales contracts and 3) up to US$20,000,000 for physical grain purchase
transactions for canola seed, In connection with the Scoular agreement (Note 15) the Macquarie Bank working capital facility
and grain purchase facility were terminated in October of 2014.

11. Demand loan

The Company has a demand loan of $13,004,000 (2013 - $12,239,000), The loan bears interest at the U.S. bank rate,
with monthly payments of USD $67,000 including interest and matures August 2027.It is secured by specific buildings,
equipment and real property. The loan is EDC CDIA guaranteed at a cost of approximately $200,000 annually, The loan
is net of deferred financing costs of $21,500 (2013 - $32,000).

19



Legumex Walker Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the vears ended December 37 . 2014 and 2073

12. Non-currentborrowings

AS at
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

December 31,
2014

December 31,

2013

Term debt

Loans payable (u)

Notes payable(b)

Senior Credit Facility (')

25t257
3r863

62,143

24,76L

3,096

6L,2t8

Obligations under finance leases (d)

91 t263

2,3r:

89,075

2,108

3,011Notes payab le to related parties

Total borrowings 93t574 94,t94

Less: Borrowings due within one year

Term debt

Obligations under finance leases

Notes payable to related parties (e)

(9,338)
(7so)

(6,56 1)

(s26)
(3,011)

(10,O88) ( 10,098)

Total non-current borrowings 83,486 84,096

Total non-current borrowings consist of the following:

Term debt

Obligations under finance leases

81,925
1,561

82,5L4

1,582

83,486 84,096

(u) Two 97,696,000 loans payable (each net of deferred financing costs of $12,000) bearing interest at a variable mortgage rate

with mónthiy paymentå of $fOj,OOO including interest due April 2Ot7; a $4,996,000 loan payable (net of deferred financing

costs of $+,ôfjO) bearing interest at a variable mortgage rate plus 0,25 percent, with monthly interest only payments, due

ap,ril 2OI7ia $i,O+3,00ó loan payable bearing interest at fixed rate of 6.94 percent with monthly payments of $44,009, due

:ùly ZOf O; a $z,zSO,OOO loan þayable bearing interest at a variable rate plus 5 percent with monthly payments of $63,000
incíuding interest, due May 20i9; three loans payable ($2B8,OOO, $86,000, $41,000) bearing interest at a variable mortgage

rate plui 0,20 percent wit'h monthly payments (i$4,OOO, $3,OOO, $1,OOO) beginning Ja.nuary 2013, due December 2016 and

Z1Lj; a $62,000 loan bearing interêst at a variable mortgage rate plus 0,35 percent with monthly payments of $2 beginning

January 2013, due December 2017, The loans are subiect to a number of financial and business covenants'

(b) Notes payable for USD $2,B2O,O0O and USD $4BO,OOO, both bearing interest at a fixed rate of 5 percent, due March 2018; a

USD $i3;OOO note payable bearing interest at a variable rate (bank's prime lending rate plus 0,5 percent) w¡th month payments

of USp $+,OOO due ¡n Rugust 2Oi5; a USD $17,000 note payable by PCC bearing ¡nterest at a variable rate (bank's prime

lending iate plus 0,55 percent) with monthly payments of USD $1,000 due August 2016,

(a)' (b) The term debt is secured by specific buildings, equipment and real property'

(.) Senior secured credit facility ("Senior Credit Facility") consisting of a term loan (USD $41,568,000 net of deferred financing

costs of USD g1,751,000) ánà a working capital lóan (USD $12,000,000), both maturing in 2Q2I, with quarterly principal

payments on the term loán of USD $1,4b4,000, The term loan bears interest at a variable rate (LIBOR or other base rate)

þlüs S,S percent, The working capital loan bears interest at a variable-rate (LIBOR) plus 6 percent.

The Senior Credit Facility is subject to a number of financial and business covenants, including: (¡) PCC maintaining minimum

wort<¡ng capital requirenients a¡id debt-to-equity levels and (ii) PCC complying with flxed-charge coverage ratios and limitations

on capäal expenditures and the amounts oi O¡ú¡oenOs that-can be declared in the first two years of operations, The financial

covenants come into effect on December 3L,20!4, and remain in effect as long as any balance is outstanding on the loan

The Senior Credit Facil¡ty is secured by a first-security interest in the PCC Plant and assets, including the equipment and

buildings, lease-hold roitgug" on the lãnd, all non-seed inventories and receivables, and an assignment.of all contrac-ts and

perm¡tõ, Þcc is requireo tõ rúno a usD $2;ooo,00O replenishing debt-service reserve fund to be pledged as security fo.r the

benior Credit Facility. The Company provided, and the syndicate of lenders accepted, a USD $2,000,000 letter of credit on

behalf of the PCC Plant in lieu of funding the debt-service reserve fund,

(d) Leases payable bear interest between 2.14 percent to 7,9 percent and are due in 2015 to 2019'
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(")As part of business combinations undertaken in 2OLZ and 2011, the Company issued notes payable to related parties, The
notes payable matured March 31, 2014 and were settled during the second quarter using funds obtained from the Company's
credit facilities,

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2014, finance costs include interest calculated under the elfective interest
rate method oî $7,443,000 (2013 - $5,7401000).

13. ConveÊible debentures

On October 3I,2QL4, LWI issued to Scoular $16,500,000 face value subordinated convertible debentures ("the Debentures").
The Debentures mature December 31, 2019 and bear interest at the rate of 7.75o/o per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears in cash on June 30, and December 31 of each year, with the first payment occurring on December 31, 2014. Each
debenture is convertible, at the holder's option, into common shares of LWI at any time prior to the close of business the day
prior to the matur¡ty date at a conversion price of $6.75 per common share, On and after December 3lt 20L7 and prior to
December 31, 2018, the Debentures may be redeemed in whole or in part from time to time at LWI's option, at a price equal
to their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, provided that the volume weighted average trading price of LWI's
shares on the TSX for the 20 consecutive trading days preceding the date on which the notice of redemption ¡s glven is not
less than 125olo of the conversion price, After December 31, 2018, and prior to maturity, LWI's redemption option is not subject
to share price restrict¡ons.

On the date of issuance, the gross proceeds in the amount of $16,500,000 were allocated firstly to the liability component
of the Debentures based on the fair value of a similar ¡nstrument without a conversion option and the residual value being
allocated to the Conversion Option, The fair value of the Debentures was estimated by calculating the discounted cash
flows of the Debentures using prevailing market rates for similar non-convert¡ble debt instruments, The fair value of the
Debentures is classified as a liability, while the residual value of the Debenture, net of taxes, is classified as a separate
component of shareholders'equity, The liability component will accrete to its final redemption amount of $16,500,000 at
Maturity Date at an effective interest rate of t3.4o/o over the five-year term of the Debentures.

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

Debenture Debenture
liability equity

component component Total

Proceeds from Octobet 3L,2Ot4 debenture issuance

Debenture issuance costs

L2,57L
(233)

3,929
(74)

16,500

(307)

Net proceeds

Accretion in carrying value of debenture liability

Deferred taxes

12,338

116

3,855

( 1,04 1)

16,193

116

( 1,04 1)

Carrying value as at December 31 20t4 t2,454 2,814 15,268
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(thousands of Canadian dollars)

14. Share capital

The Company,s common shares have no par value and the authorized share capital is comprised of an unlimited number of

common shares and an unlimited number of preferred shares issuable in series with rights set by the directors'

Authorized, issued and outstanding shares:

December 31, December 31,

. 20L4 2013

Issued and outstanding

Common Shares

L6,294,635 voting shares (2013 - t6'294,635) 135,707 t35,7Q7

L35t707 L35,707

15. Non-controlling interests

pCC is owned g4 percent (2013 - 85 percent) by the Company and 16 percent (2013 - 15 percent) by non-controlling interests'

It operates in the State of Washington ¡n the USA'

The summary financial data for PCC is as follows, Intercompany amounts have not been eliminated.

December 31, December 31'

(thousands of Canadian dollars) 20L4 2013

Current assets

Long-term assets

31316

tozt557
L7,293

99,053

Total assets 1O5,873 tt6,346

Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

(s,566)
(86,655)

( 16,393)
(72,200)

Total liabilities (92,22L) (88,593)

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013

Revenues

Expenses

120,628
(136,s34)

80,970
( 102,580)

Net Loss (15,906) (2r,610)

Other comprehensive income (loss)' net of tax 1r805 2,367

Comprehensive loss, net of tax (14,101) (L9,243)

PCC has paid no distributions to its shareholders'
The accumulated non-controlling ¡nterest for PCC is as follows:

December 31,
20L4

December 31,

2013(thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at beginning of Year

Net loss

Increase in non-controlling interest ownership

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

4,163
(2,s45)

277
289

7,048
(3,240)

35s

As at end of year
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On January g, 2Ot4 pCC's other equity partner acquired from the Company one additional PCC membership unit for USD

$1,000,00ö subject to a price reduition if one add¡tional PCC membership unit was not sold by January ql 201,5 (Note 26)'
As no additional unit was iold by the required date the price for the sale of the membership unit was reduced by USD $433,000
in the fourth quarter of zoL4. The transaction reduced the Company's ownership interest in PcC from B5o/o to B4o/o' As the

sale of membership unit represents a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners, the difference between the proceeds

received and the book vaíue of !o/o of PCC was recognized directly in equity and resulted in a $323,000 reduction of the

Company's deficit.

On October 27, 2Ol4 pCC and The Scoular Company ("Scoular") entered into a long-term processing agreement. Under the

terms of the agreement, pCC will manage the procóssing of canola seed and production of canola oil and meal on Scoular's

behalf, includirig retaining crush margin r¡st<s anO opportunities and making all type, grade and pricing decisions and Scoular

will ex'ecute the-physical õontracts thãt support the continuous flow of inbound canola seed and the sale of the meal produced

OV pòC, the maiketing of oil produced by ilie pCc Plant is led by PCC in coordination with Scoular. All inventories will be owned

by Scoular and Scoulair will pay PCC a variable processing fee based on seed crushed and meal and oil produced' Under this

agreement pCC recognizes revenue on a net basis, whiðh equates to the contracted prices for meal and oil crushed net of

sõedcostsandadministrativefeeschargedbyScoular. TheagreementterminatesonJune30,2O2O,butautomaticallyrenews
for consecutive five year periods unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal,

During the year ended December 31, 2014, LWI advanced USD $8,452,000 (2013- USD $5,472,000) to PCC for general

corporate purposes and to fund working capital requirements'

16, Related party transact¡ons

Relationship between parent and subsidiaries

The main transactions between LWI and its subsidiaries include the provision of loans and advances as well as the provision

of management services. The Special Crops segment includes intercompany sales of inventories between the wholly-owned

subsidiaries of LWI which are fully eliminated on consolidation.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the

activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including executive directors. The total compensation is as follows:

(thousan ds of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December 31,

20L4 2013

Salaries and short-term benefits

Share-based payments

Contributions to defined contribution plans

( 1,481)
(86)
(2e)

( 1,516)
(s73)

(38)

(1,596) (2,L27)

Business combinations

As part of business combinations undeftaken during 2012 and 2011,_the Company issued notes payable to related parties'

As ôf December 31, 2014, notes payable to relatedÞarties were $nil (December 31, 2013 - $3'011,000). The notes payable

matured March 31,2014 and were settled during the second quarter of 2Ql4 using funds obtained from the Company's credit

facilities.
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17. Financial risk management and financial instruments

[a] Financial risk management

The Company had the following derivative contracts outstanding at December 31,2014:

Notional Canadian dollar eouivalents IOOOsì

Settlement dates Units
Contract
amount Fair value

Unrealized
gain (loss)

Foreign currency risk
January 2015 - November 2015

March 2015 - June 2015

Commodity price risk

February 2015 - December
20L5

January 20LS - April 2015

usD 98,200,000

cAD 9,300,000

22,L08 tonnes

23,367 tonnes

LL3,922
(9,383)

15,088
(rL,024)

1 10,830
(9,275)

14,550
( 1 1,043)

(3,092)

108

(s38)

( le)

(3,54 1 )

The Company had the following derivative contracts outstanding at December 31' 2013:

Notional Canadian dollar equivalents (OOOs)

settlement dates
Unrealized
gain (loss)Units

Contract
amount Fair value

Foreign currency risk
January 2QL4 - December 2014

February 2Ot4 - March 2014

March 2014 - June 2014

March 2014 - June 2014

Commodity price risk
January 2Ot4 - July 2014

January 2OL4 - November 2014

usD 142,509,000

EUR 252,050

cAD 22,600,000

cAD 12,900,000

7t,395 tonnes

111,301 tonnes

150,039
(362)

(22,615)

13,001

45,249
(48,634)

L48,464
(36e)

(22,575)

t2,886

44,464
(49,406)

( 1,575)
(7)

40

(11s)

(78s)

(772)

(3,2t4)

As at
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

December 3lt
20L4

December 31,

2013

Derivative assets

Derivative liabilities (3,541) (3,2L4)

(3,541) (3,2t4)

The net loss on commodity derivatives, both realized and unrealized, included in cost of sales for the year ended December

3tt ZOI4 was g1,032,000, fne net loss on foreign exchange forward contracts, both realized and unrealized, included in

foreign exchange gains (losses) for the year ended December 3L, 2Ot4 was $10,281,000'

[b] Foreign currency risk

The objective of the Company,s foreign exchange risk management activities is to m¡nimize transaction exposures and

the rejulting volatility of the compañy's earniñgs, subject to liquidity r-estrictions, by en-tering into foreign exchange

forward contracts, Foreign currency risk is created by fluctuations in the fair value or cash flows of financial instruments

due to changes in foreign exchange rates and exposure'
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A significant part of the Company's sales are transacted in U.S. dollars and as a result, fluctuations in the rate of exchange

betùeen the U,S. dollar aná Canadian dollar can have a significant effect on the Company's cash flows and reported
results. Sales in the Company's Chinese operations transacted through its subsidiary, Legumex Walker China Ltd. are
primarily in U.S, dollars as weli. The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts, put options and call options
to manage its foreign exchange risk (see table above).

AtDecember 3L,2OL4,theCompanyhadU.S.dollardenominatedaccountsreceivableof $41,871,000(USD$36,093,000)
and U,S. dollar denomlnated accounts payable of $11,273,000 (USD $9,717,000).

The Company's revenues denominated in U.S, dollars for the year ended December 3t, 2OL4 were USD $386,693'000
and the tótal of its cost of sales - inputs and other processing costs and its selling and administrative expenses denominated
in that currency were USD $286,i91,000. Accordingly, a 10 percent increase or decrease in the value of the U'S' dollar
relative to its ianadian counterpart would result in a $9,990,000 increase or decrease in revenues net of cost of sales -

inputs and other processing cosls and selling and administrative expenses. When the Company sources product in Canada

in Canadian dollars for U,S, dollar sales, the Company's objective is to minimize transaction exposure with foreign exchange

derivative contracts and accordingly believes the increase or decrease in net income will be substantially lower than the

above figures.

[c] Fair value

All financial instruments measured at fair value are categorized into one of three levels, described below, for disclosure
purposes, Each level is based on transparency of inputs used to measure the fair value of assets and liabilities.

Level 1 - values based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - values based on quoted prices in markets that are not act¡ve or model inputs that are observable either directly
or indirectly for substantiaity tne full term of the asset or liability, In determining the inputs for calculating fair values,

the Company looks to readily observable market inputs, primarily currency rates and currentfutures contract prices based

on the nature of the Company's derivative instruments'

Level 3 - values are based on prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable and significant
to the overall fair value measurement, There were no items measured at fair value using level 3 in 2013 or 2014.

The fairvalue hierarchy of financial ¡nstruments measured atfairvalue on the consolidated statements of financial position

is as follows:

December 3Lt 2OL4 December 31, 2013

(thousands of Canadian dollars) Classification
Fair value
hierarchy

Carryi
amou Fair value

Carrying
amount Fair value

n9
nt

Financial assets
Cash

Restricted cash

Financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings

Derivative liabilities

FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

1

1

3,O51

3s1

54t725
3t541

3rO51

351

54t725
3t541

2,081

698

58,229

3,2t4

2,081

698

58,229

3,2t4
1

2

The fair values of accounts receivable, the demand loan and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their
ca rrying va lues g iven their short-term matu rities. Management has determ ined that the fair value of non-cu rrent borrowings

¿oeé nõt materlatty differ from its carrying value as fhe majority of such debt is subject to floating interest rates and

current market conditions,

Id] CommodÍty prlce rÍsk

The Company is exposed to commodity price movements in the market as part of its normal operations. The Company

attempts to match commodity purchasé èontracts directly with producers with sales contracts entered into with approved

OrV"rð to minimize the effect'of changes in the price of agricultural commodities between the original contract dates and

deúvery dates. The Company also enters into commodity futures contracts and derivative swaps in order to manage its
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commodity price risk related to canola and corn purchases, canola meal and oil sales and board crush margins (see table
above),

[e] Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that customers or a counterparty to a financial instrument fail to meet their obligation to the
Company. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist prlmarily
of trade accounts receivable as the Company's sales are concentrated in the agriculture sector, The Company had many
customers during the course of the year and believes that there is minimal risk associated with collection of these amounts.
The Company manages its cred¡t risk by entering into EDC insurance contracts where available, requesting Documentary
Credits and customer deposits, and performing regular credit assessments of its customers.

The Company has historically experienced minimal credit losses, thus it considers the credit quality of trade accounts
receivable at December 3L, 2013 that are neither impaired nor past due to be high, The distribution of credit quality is
as follows:

Aging of trade accounts receivable
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

December 31,
20t4

December 31,

2013

Neither impaired nor past due

Past due:

31-60 days

61-90 days

Greater than 90 days

37,51O

2,860
3,853
9,003

44,676

5,890

3,4Q4

3,193

Allowance for doubtful accounts

53,226
(1,602)

57,t63
( 1,328)

Balance, end period 51,624 55,835

As at December 31, 20L4, no one customer represented more than 10 percent of outstand¡ng accounts receivable.

All provisions for doubtful accounts are charged to selling, general and administrative expenses. Changes in allowance
for losses against accounts receivable are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

December 31,
20t4

December 31,

20 13

Balance, beginning of period

New provisions recognized during the period

Amounts written off during the period as uncollectible

1r328
835

(561)

1,066

948
(686)

Balance, end period Lt6O2 L,328

The carrying value of trade accounts receivable considered by the Company to be impaired is reduced by specific provisions
to the value estimated to be realizable in the normal course of operations, A trade accounts receivable is considered to
be impaired if, as a result of a deterioration in credit quality, there is no longer reasonable assurance of timely collection
of the full amount, When an asset is classified as impaired, an allowance for loss is established to adjust the carrying
value of the asset to its net recoverable amount, To determine this amount, several factors are taken into account, including
market conditions, evaluations obtained from third parties and/or the discounted value of expected cash flows,

[f] Líquidíty risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will encounter difficulties in meet¡ng its financial liability obligations as they become
due. The Company manages its liquidity risk through cash and debt management. In managing liquidity risk, the Company
maintains access to committed short and long-term debt facilities as well as to equity markets, the availability of which
is dependent on market conditions, The Company monitors its requirements through the use of rolling future net cash
flow projections a nd budgets a nd believes it has sufficient fu nd ing throug h the use of cred it facilities in place at Decem ber 3 1,
2014 to meet foreseeable borrowing requirements and their underlying covenants.
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The table below summarizes the undiscounted contractual payments of the Company's financial liabilities as at
December 3t, 20L4 and includes both interest and principal cash flows:

(thousands of Canadian dollars) Total
Within 12
months

13 to 24
months

2to 4
years

After 4
years

Short-term borrowings

Demand loan

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Non-current borrowings (t)

Convertible debentures (2)

Operating leases

54,725

18,869

42,834

t\5,924
22,898

tQ,77L

54,725

933

42,834

15,520

L,279

2,354

933

14,90r
L,282

L,943

36,336

2,558

2,86Q

49,L67

L7 t779
3,6t4

1,865 15,138

Total 266,021 rt7,645 19,059 43,6L9 85,698
(1) Excludes unamortized balance of deferred finance costs of $2,081,000
(2) Assumes none of the debentures are converted or redeemed prior to maturlty and that they'are paid out in cash on maturity

[g] Interest rate risk

Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated with some financial assets and liabilities,
known as cash flow risk, and on the fair value of other financial assets or liabilities, known as price risk. The Company
is exposed to interest rate risk primarily relating to its short-term and non-current borrowings that bears interest that
fluctuates with the prime rate, A 1 percent change in the prime rate of interest could increase or decrease interest expense
on non-current borrowings by approximately $1,009,000 per year. At December 3L,20L4 borrowing levels, a 1 percent
change in the prime rate of interest would increase or decrease interest expense on short-term borrowings by $627,000,

F¡nance costs
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December 31,
2lJL4 2013

Interests on overdrafts and other finance costs

Interest on non-current borrowings

(3,972)
(7,444)

(3,546)
(5,297)

Total finance costs (LLA16) (8,843)

18. Selling, general and administrative expenses

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Vear ended December 31,
2014 2013

Employee benefit costs, including share-based compensation

Professional fees

Information tech nology

Depreciation and amortization

Other

(L2,576)
(2t646)

(603)
(6.r72)
(5,647)

(L3,2L7)
(2,587)
( 1,343)
(5,62L)
( 5, 161)

Selling, g eneral and administrative expenses (27 ,644) (27,929)

19. Employee benefits and share-based compensation

Total employee benefit costs for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $29,150,000 (2013 - $28,319,000) of which
share-based compensation was $106,000 (2013 - $1,084,000).

[a] Options under Incentive Plans

The Company has an incentive stock option plan (the "Incentive Plan") whereby the Company may grant to directors,
officers,employeesandconsultantsoptlonstopurchaseCommonSharesoftheCompany. Subjecttoapplicableregulations
and shareholder approval, the Plan provides for the issuance of stock options to acquire up to ten percent of the Company's
issued and outstanding Common Shares, on a rolling basis. Subject to applicable regulations, the terms and conditions,
including pricing, term and vesting of each option granted under the Plan are determined by the Board of Directors'
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Summary of Options Outstanding Under Incentive Plan

Options
Outstanding

Weighted
Average

Grant Þate
Fair Value

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted
Average
Exercise Options

Price Exercisable

As at December 3L,2012
Options granted

Forfeited

1,295,000

294,000
(99,500)

0,45

r.70

7.3t
6.43

7.1,7

As at December 31, 2013

Options granted

Forfeited

1,489,500

745|OOO

(677,5OO)
1.08
2.20

7.15

2.25
7.06

489,t67 7.58

As at December 31 2014 1r557rO00 4,84 501,833 7,5t

The fairvalue of each option granted was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the following inputs

2014 Ootions
Granted 2013 Options Granted 2012 Options Granted

2011 Options
Granted

December 22 May 17 October 1 August 24 May 25 July 14

Options issued

Options
outstanding

Exercise price

Grant date fair
value

Vesting date

Expiration date

Risk-free
i nterest rate

Expected life
Exoected
volatility in
market price of
shares

Expected
dividend yield

Expected
forfeiture rate

294,000 1 5 0,000 82,500 852,000 280,000

165,500

9,00

2.38

Annual equal
increments

July 14,
20L2-2Qt4

July L4,2QL6

2,L9220/o

5 years

35o/o

0o/o

0o/o

745,OOQ

745,000

2.25

1,0829

December
22,20L6

December
22,20L9

!.360/o

5 years

57.60/o

0o/o

l5o/o

234,000

6.43

0.45

Annual equal
increments

MAY T7,
20L4-20t6

May 17,2018

t.34070/o

5 years

35%

0o/o

5o/o

50,000

B.38

2.75

Annual equal
increments
October 1,
20 13-20 15

October 1,
20L7

t.3725o/o

5 years

35o/o

Oo/o

5o/o

65,000

8,32

2.72

Annual equal
increments
August 24,
2013-2015
August 24,

20L7

1,3000%

5 years

297,500

6.43

2.L4

Annual equal
increments

May 25,
20 13-20 1 5

May 25,20L7

1 ,60990/o

5 years

35o/o

0o/o

5o/o

35o/o

Qo/o

5o/o

Ib] Warrants

On October !,20L2, the Company issued 660,000 warrants as part of the consideration paid in the purchase of a business,

On october Lt 20L4 these warrants expired unexercised,

[c] Other Options

On July L4,20\L, the Company granted options to the syndicate of underwriters equal to 6 percent of the total number
of Common Shares sold under the initial public offering (including any Common Shares sold upon exercise of the Over-
Allotment Options) at a price per Common Share of $9.00 exercisable for a period of 18 months from the date of closing
of the offering. The total options of 443,463 expired during the first quarter of 2013.
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20. Earnings (loss) per share

Earnings (loss) per share is based on the consolidated earnings (loss) for the year divided by the weighted average number
of shares'outstanding during the year, Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed in accordance with the treasury stock
method and based on the weighted average number of shares and dilutive share equivalents'

The following reflects the earnings and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share computations:

(thousan ds of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31,
20L4 2013

Net loss attributable to shareholders

Basic weighted average number of shares

(22Aee)
16,295

(25,380)

L6,295

Basic and diluted loss per share (1.38) ( 1. s6)

The outstanding stock options, warrants and convertible debentures were excluded from the calculation of the above diluted
loss per share because their effect is anti-dilutive'

21. Reportable business segments

Year ended December 3Lt 2OL4

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

Special

Crops

Oilseed

Processing

Corporate &

Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues

Cost of sales - inputs and other processing

352,283
(324,O54)

L20,628
( 1 18,569)

(4,964)

4,964

467,947
(437,659)

Adjusted gross profit(u)

Selling and administrative

28,229

( 10,466)

2,059
(4,303)

30,288
(2t,472)

Adjusted EBITDA t7,763

(rL,L76)

(2,244)

(5,5 1 2)

(6,703

(6,703)

(s26)
8,816

(L7,214)Depreciation and amortization

Adjusted EBIT(') 6,587 (7,756) (7,229) (8,398)

Year ended December 31, 2Ot3

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

Special

Crops

Oilseed

Processing

Revenues

Cost of sales - inputs and other processing

352,597

(325,477)

80,970

(87,576)

Corporate Consolidated

433,567

(413,053)

Adjusted gross profit(a)

Selling and administrative

27,120

( 1 1,565)

(6,606)

(3,642) (7,101)

20,514

(22,308)

Adjusted EBITDA(b)

Depreciation and amortization

15,555

( 10,097)

( 10,248)

(4,888)

(7,10 1)

( 18s)

(L,794)

( 15,170)

usted EBIT(c) 4585 ( 15,136) 7 t6,964)

Adj
Adj

usted gross profit excluded depreci ation and amortizat¡on included in cost of sales

Special crops includes inter-segment sale of inventories between wholly owned subsidiaries. of LWI and the oilseeds
processing segment which arelully eliminated on consolidation. No revenues from transactions with a single external
customer amount to 10 percent or more of the Company's revenues.

(b) usted EBITDA - Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amoftization, other items and income taxes
(c) Adjusted EBIT - Earnings before finance costs, other items an d recovery of or provision for income taxes
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Sales during the year were derived from customers located in the following geographic areas:

For the year ended December 31,
(thousands of Canadian dollars) ZOL4 2013

The Americas

Europe

Asia

Africa

Middle East

Indian subcontinent

325,561
42tO93
40,7O8

24t354
18,268
16,963

3t4,23L
48,265

30,345

L8,642

L4,927

7,L57
467t947 433 567

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets by geographic area are as follows:

As at December 91,
(thousands of Canadian dollars) 2Ot4

December 31,

2013

Canada

United States

China

63t264
119,92O

391

68,958

Lr7,302
395

183,575 186,655

22. Commitments and contingencies

[a] Contractual camm¡tments for the purchase of property, plant and equlpment

PCC contracted ICG to provide both the design and construction of the PCC Plant for a guaranteed maximum price of USD
$80'875,000, subject to additions and deductions. The contract is unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by McKinstry
Co, LLC, which is affiliated with ICG. As at March 26,20t5 final close out of the contract is pending,

[b] Operating and finance leases

The Company has land, storage facilities, rail line assets and office equipment under both operating leases and finance leases
(Note 12). These leases have a life of between one and 50 years. Renewal options are included in the contracts for certain
land leases for up to an additional 30 years.

During the year ended December 31, 2014 the Company recognized an expense of 9L,972,0Q0 (2013 - gt,494pOO) related
to operating lease agreements, This amount relates only to minimum lease payments.

Minimum aggregate payments on these leases in the future are as follows:

(thousands of Canadian dollars Total
Within 12
months

Ito5
years

After 5
years

Finance leases

Operating leases

2,579

L0,77 L

873

2,354
L,706

5,78t 2,636
Total 13,350 3,227 7,487 2,636

[c] Legal actions

The Company is involved in various legal matters arising in the ordinary course of business. The resolution of these matters
is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

[d] Security

Throughout the year the Company is required by the Canadian Grain Comm¡ssion to provide security for the outstanding
grower liabilities. Th ls amou nt is secu red by letters of g uara ntee tota lling $ 1 1,400,000. Pricing of the letters of g uarantee a re
at 0.0503 percent.
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The Company's purchasing card program is secured by a $200,000 letter of guarantee,

tel Guarantee

The Company has provided a guarantee of $1,000,000 in favour of its joint venture 0729767 B.C. Ltd.

23. Capital Management

The Company's objectives in managing capital are to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor and
market confidence; to ensure sufficient liquidity to service its debts, support capital projects and growth-oriented acquisitions;
and to provide a return to shareholders.

The Company sets the amount and type of capital required relative to its assessment of risk and manages the capital structure
and makes adiustments to it in light of changes to economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets,
and with consideration of externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject. In order to maintain or modify its
capital structure, the Company may adjust or defer the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, seek
other forms of financing, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company manages net debt and shareholders'equity as components of its capital as calculated below.

December 31, December 31,
(thousands of Canadian dollars) 2OL4 2013

Short-term borrowings
Demand loan

Long-term debt
Convertible debentures outstanding, face value
Less: Cash

Less: Restricted cash

54t725
13,004
93,574
16,500
(3,05r)

(3sr)

58,229

L2,239

94,t94

(2,08 1)

(6e8)
Net debt

Share capital

Deficit

L7+4Ot
r35t707
(62ß24)

1 6 1,883

L35,707

(40,648)
Total capital 247,284 256,942

There have been no changes in the Company's capital management objectives, policies and processes during the year. There
are certain capital requirements of the Company resulting from the Company's credit facility that include financial covenants
and ratios, including leverage ratios that assess the funded senior debt to adjusted earnings before interest, income tax
expense, depreciation, amortization, acquisition costs and other non-cash items ("Adjusted EBITDA") ratio. Management uses
these capital requirements in the decisions made in managing the level and make-up of the Company's capital stiucture. The
Company is in compliance with all of the financial covenants as at December 3L,20L4.

Changes in the capital of the Company overthe year ended December 31, 2Ot4 are mainly attributed to the issuance of the
convertible debentures in October 2014.
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24. Income Taxes

The major components of recovery of (provisions for) income taxes are as follows

For th€ years ended December 31,

(thousands of Canadian dollars) 2014 2013

Current income taxes recovery (provision)

Current tax charge and adjustments for prior periods (74) 27L)

Deferred income taxes recovery (provision)

Originating and reversing of temporary differences

Changes in tax rate

1t376 L,37L

L,376 1,37L

Recovery of income taxes 1,3O2 1,100

The reconciliation between the recovery of income taxes and accounting loss multiplied by the combined Canadian federal
and provincial statutory income tax rate is as follows:

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December

2fi14 2&h

Loss before income taxes

Combined Canadian statutory income tax rate

(26,346>

27.OOo/o

(29,720)

27,00o/o

Income tax recovery at combined Canadian statutory ¡ncome tax rate

Effect of differences between foreign and combined Canadian statutory income tax rate

Effect of differences between deferred tax rates and combined Canadian statutory income
tax rate
Non-deductible expenses

Non-taxable portion of capital gains

Effect of non-controlling interests
Deferred tax assets not recogn¡zed during the year

Other

7,tr3
r,942

(183)

(64r)
(6,902)

(27)

8,024

3,023

(2e4)
4

(1,239)
(9,039)

62L

Recovery of income taxes r,3o2 1,100

The Company's deferred tax positions at the statement of financial position dates are as follows

AS at
(thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at December 31,
2014 2013

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

2,2O8
(12,140)

3,t47
( 13,6 14)

(9,932) (L0,467)
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For the year ended December 3L,20L4 significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities include:

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at
December 31,

2013

Recognized in
net earnings

(net loss)
Recognized in

equity or assets

As at
December 31,

20t4

Deferred tax assets

Derivative i nstruments

Share issuance costs

Unused tax losses

Intang¡ble assets

Unrealized foreign exchange losses

Other

425
It2f¡2

20t489
135

119

2t767

410
(4e8)

3,358
(e)
27

(t,ot7) 200

835

784
23ß47

L26
L46

1,950

25t217 2t27L 200 27,68,8

Deferred tax liabilities
Convertible debentures

Property, plant and equipment

Intang¡ble assets

Other

(3Ot7L2)
(4,919)

(53)

L4
(2tO62)

1,166
(13)

(1,041) (LtO27)
(32t774)
(3,753)

(66)

(35,684) (8es) (1,041) (37t62O)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (LO,467 1,376 (841) (9,932)

For the year ended December 31, 2013 significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities include

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

As at Recognized in
December 31, net earnings20L2 (net loss)

As at December
31, 2013

Deferred tax assets

Derivative instruments

Share issuance costs

Unused tax losses

Intangible assets

Unrealized foreign exchange losses

Other

1,656

23,568

4B

515

425

(374)

(3,079)

87

119

2,252

425

t,282
20,489

135

119

2,767

25,787 (s70) 25,2t7

Deferred tax liabilities
Derivative instruments

Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains)

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Other

(2s)

(1 17)

(31,465)

(6,018)

25

L17

753

1,099

(s3)

(30,7t2)
(4,919)

(s3)

(37,625) L,94L (35,684)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (11.838)
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Legumex Walker Inc,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the vears ended December 31. 2014 and 2O13

The realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
these temporary differences and unused tax losses become deductible. Based on the analysis of taxable temporary differences
and future taxable income, the management of the Company has not recognized deferred tax assets for the following deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses:

As at
fthousands of Canadian dollars)

Decêmber 31,
20t4

December 31,
2013

Deductible temporary differences

Unused tax losses
Expir¡ng in 2032
Expiring in 2033
Explring in 2034

25. Net changes in working capital accounts

(thousands of Canadian dollars)

41380

23,573
t4,733
ll,720

December 31,
20t4

2,659

15,078
14t733

December 31,

2013

Accounts receivable

Income taxes, net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities

4,9t8
(1es)

19,331

Lt2L3
( 15,883)

6,947

4L6
(5,597)

(L,844)
L,L32

Net changes to non-cash workinq capital 9,384 1,054

26. Subsequent events

On January 8, 2015 the Company paid PCC's other equity partner USD $433,000 for a price adjustment to the PCC membership
un¡t previously sold on January B, 20L4 (Note 15),

On February 5, 2015, the Company borrowed an additional $USD $1,285,194 from PCC's other equity partner, The terms and
conditions of the note are the same as the $USD 2,820,000 notes payable described in Note 12(b).

On March 12,20L5 HSBC approved a provisional $10 million increase in the LWC credit facility (Note 10), increasing it from
$54 million to $64 million, for the period starting March 12,2OI5 and ending May 31, 2015.

On March 16,2015 the Company announced that its Board of D¡rectors had created a Special Commmittee to oversee a
strategic review process with the ultimate goal of maximizing shareholder value. Strategic and financial alternatives may
include, but are not limited to a strategic financing, merger or other business combination, sale of the Company or a portion
of the Company's business or assets or any combination thereof, as well as the continued execution of its business plan,
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LWP Capital Gompletes Divestiture of Pacific Coast Canola
Ownership
WtNNtPEc, Jan. 5, 2016 /CNW - LWP Çapital lnc. (TSX:LWP) (formerly "Legumex Walker lnc,") ("LWP Capital" or the "Çompany'')

today announced that its wholry owned subsidiary has completed the divest¡ture of its 84% ownership interest in Pacific Coast Canola

f-¡Ci'pCC") to Glencore Grain lnvestment LLC and McKinstry Holdings, lnc., an affliate of lndustrial Conshuction Group, lnc' ("lCG'),

for no cash consideration.

Under the terms of the transaction, ICG has provided PCC with a release of its lien on the PCC plant and of its claims against PCC

and its affiliates. Agcountry Farm Credit Services, FLCA ("AgCountry''), the agent for a syndicate of lenders under PCC's senior

credit facility (the ,,Fäcility'')'who had previously made demand for repayment of all amounts due under the Facility, agreed to terms of

the repaymánìof the FaciliÇand the Facilitywas repaid and terminated. PCC previouslyterminated its processing agreementwith

The Scoular Company.

With both the sale of the assets of the Company's Special Crops Division and the divestiture of the Company's indirect 84% interest

in pCC completed, LWp Capital no longer cariies on an active business. As a result, the Company's Common Shares were delisted

from the TSX on December 91 ,2015 and, on that date, the Company commenced its voluntary liquidation and dissolution pursuant to

lhe Canada Buslness Corporations Acf (the "Liquidation Plan"), as further described in its press release dated November 23' 2015'

KSV Advisory lnc. ("KSV") is the Liquidator under the Liquidation Plan'

Further information regarding the Liquidation Plan is contained in the Management lnformation Circular dated October 12,2Q15, as

amended, which is available on wrvw.sedar.com and on KSV's website at www.ksvadvìsory.com'

Cautionary Note on Forward-looking Stafemenús

Ihis press release contains "fo¡tø¡dlooking information" uithin the meaning of Canadian secunfles lavw vhich may include, but is

not timited to, statements retating to the voluntary liquidation and dissolution of the Company. Such forvnñlooking information

refecfs the Company's yleus viih respectto future events and is subjectto risks, unceftainties and assumptions, including the risk

thatthe net proceeds of the sale of the Speciat Crops Division w7l be /ess than previously disclosed the riskthat notvtithstanding

the fact thai the Company uitt not realize any prcceeds from the divestiture of its interest in PCC, the Company or its subsidlanes

may incur costs and obligations in respect of such divestiture, the risk that the expenses of the Company uill exceed the amount

esimated by the Company, the iskthtat distributionsto sharcholders uitt be delayed, the riskthatthe plan of liquidation uill

become effective laterthai expected, the riskthat the closing vørking capitat uitt not be determined t¡ithin the time frame expected

and the risk thatthe amount available for distribution to shareholders uitt be tess than expected, as væ// as those factors refened to

in the section entitted "Risk Factors" in the Company's Management lnformation Circulardated &tober 12, 2015 as amended by

the Addendum dated ectober 26, 201 5, in the Managemenfb Dlscus sion and Analysis for the period ended September 30' 201 5

and in the Annual lnformation Form dated March 31 , 201 5 vhich are available on SEDAR at wtwtsedar.com and should be

revievwdinconjunctionwfhfhispress release.TheCompany'sexpectationuithrcspecttothenetamountavailablefordistribution
to shareholders and timing for such distribufions assume thattthe f,nat vwrking capital is nof /ess than as at September 30' 2015,

that the expenses of the Company uilt not exceed the amount expected and the Company uill rcceive the necessary approvals for

such distiibutions. Atthough the Company has attempted to identify impoftant factors that could cause actual actions, events or

resu/fs fo ditrer materia¡y from those described in fonmrdlooking statements, therv may be other factots that cause actions,

events or results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that foruard-looking statements uill

prove to be accurate as actual results and future events could differ materíally ftom those anticipated in such sfafemenfs'
'Accordingty, 

readers should not place undue reliance on fonçrd-looking statements. Although the Company believesthe

assumpionis inherent in fonrcrd-looking statements are reasonable, undue reliance should not be placed on these statements,

vhich onty appty as of the date of this fress release. The Company expressly disclaims any intention orobligation to update or

revíse aiy foffird-tooking statements, vhether as a result of newinformation, future events or otheruise, except ín accordance uith

appl icable secunfies /aus.

SOURCE LWP CaPitallnc.

%SEDAR: 00031 736E

Forfurther information: Joel Horn, President, LWP Capital, lnc., info@lwpci.com; Lawrence Chamberlain, NATIONAL Equicom'

lchamberlai n@nati onal.ca, (41 6) 848-1 457
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Legumex Walker Provides Update on Expected Distribution to Shareholders

- Company Moving Towards Ctosing of Divestíture of Pøcífic Coost Conolø -

WlNNlpEG, MB {Octobe r 26,20L51- Legumex Walker lnc. (TSX: LWP) ("LWl" or the "Company") today

provided a revised estimate for the net amount available for distribution to shareholders ("the

Distribution,,) following the previously announced proposed sale of substantially all of the assets its

Special Crops Division to The Scoular Company ("Scoutar/') for CAD$94 million plus the amount of net

working capital at closing, on a cash free debt free basis, paid in cash (the "Sale Transaction").

The Company has completed an update of the Distribution in advance of the Special Meeting of

Shareholders to be held on November g,2oL5. The Distribution has been updated to include Capital

Lease Obligations in Secured Debt Repayment, increasing this required repayment by $+.+ million' As a

result, the Distribution is now estimated to be 51.69 to S1,98 per share (after deducting estimated taxes,

all corporate and Special Crops Division related debt and all wind-up and transaction related expenses as

set out under the heading "Use of Proceeds from the Sale Transaction" in the Company's Management

lnformation Circular dated October tZ,2OI5 ("the Circular"). ln addition, the Company has also

completed an update of its working capitalas at October23,20L5 and continues to be satisfied with the

parameters presented in the Circular in this regard.

The revised estimated Distribution represents a 69,8%to 98,9% premium over the 20-day volume-

weighted average price of the Company's Common Shares on the TSX as of September LL, 2015, the last

trading day prior to the announcement of the Sale Transaction. The net amount available for

distribution to shareholders is based on net working capital estimated as at September 30, 2015. The

actual amount of the Distribution will be based on working capital at closing, which will be different than

working capital as at September 30, 2015

The Company also reported it continues to make progress towards the intended divestiture of its 84%

ownership interest in Pacific Coast Canola ("PCC") (the "PCC Transaction"). The Company has been

informed that the terms have been agreed to in principle with the prospective acquirers and the parties

are moving towards expected closing of the transaction, including termination of the Processing

Agreement between pCC and the Scoular Company, although the outcome of any such transaction is

uncertain and is subject to compliance with the terms of the forbearance from secured lenders. The

Company does not expect to receive any value from the sale of its84% interest.

The revised estimated Distribution range of $1.69 to S1.98 per share assumes the Company will not be

required to pay St.2 m¡ll¡on in respect of severance obligations for PCC nor that the Company will be

required to pay to Scoular an amount of USS1.5 million in respect of the sale of the Canola Current

Assets by Scoular in connection with the termination of the PCC Processing Agreement'

**.....,/ailzra- C:a*^.*...,.,.., s
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BOARD RECOMMËNDATION

The Board of Directors ("the Board") of [Wl has unanimously approved the sale of the Specialty Crops

Division. The Board recommends that shareholders vote in favour of the Sale Transaction and other

related maüers.

ADDENDUM MANAGEMENT INFORMATI ON CIRCULAR

An addendum to Management lnformation Circular ("the Addendum") in respect to the update

described above will be mailed to shareholders as of the record date of October 9, ZOI5. Copies of the

Addendum will be filed with Canadian securities regulators and will be available on the SEDAR profile of

the Company at www.sedar.com. ln addition, investors and shareholders may obtain free copies of the

documents the Company files with Canadian securities regulators by directing a written request to LWl,

1345 Kenaston Boulevard, Winnipeg, MB R3P 2P2 Attention: Corporate Secretary. lnvestors and

shareholders of the Company are urged to read the Circular and the Addendum.as such materials

contain important information about the transaction.

THE SP MEETING

The Special Meeting of Shareholders to consider the Resolutions will be held on November 9, 2015 at

L0:00 a.m. (Toronto time) at the offices of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, Scotia Plaza,40 King St. W., 44th

Floor, Toronto, Ontario. All shareholders are encouraged to vote.

HOW TO VOTE

Registered shareholders (shareholders who hold LWI shares in their name and represented by a physical

certificate or through the Direct Registration System) may vote by mail, internet, fax or in person at the

Meeting. ln the interest of time, shareholders are encouraged to vote via the internet or by fax as follows:

lnternet:

Facsimile:

Vote online at www.voteproxyonline,com, using the L2 digit control number located on your

proxy.

4L6-595-9593

Beneficiat shareholders (shareholders who hold LWI shares thr:ough a bank, broker or other intermediary)

will have different voting instructions provided to them and should follow the instructions found on their

voting instruction form to vote online, by telephone or fax.

SHAREHOLDER QUESTIONS

Shareholders who have questions or require assistance with voting may contact LWI's Proxy Solicitation

Agent:
Laurel Hill Advisory GrouP

Toll free : I-877 -452-71-84 or 4L6-3O4-02L1 (collect)

Email : assistance@laurelhill.com

About Legumex Walker lnc.

LWI is a growth-oriented processor and merchandiser of pulses and other special crops, and with the

completion of the PCC canola seed processing facility in Washington State, canola products. The Company

derives its revenue from sourcing, processing, marketing and distributing special crops, canola products

and associated healthy, specialty food ingredients to a global customer base. The Company operates

processing facilities in the Canadian Prairies, American Midwest, the Pacific Northwest, and China'
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Cøutionary Note on Forward-looking Stotements

This press release contains "forward-looking ínformotion" within the meaning of Canadion securities
laws which may include, but ore not limited to, statements relating to the tronsaction value to LWI of the

sole tronsaction, the proposed plan of liquidation and the qmount of the Compony's working capital as ot
September 30, 2075 and October 23, 20L5, the estimoted omount of distributions to shareholders ond

the proposed divestiture of PCC. Such forword-looking information reflects the Company's views with
respect to future events and is subject to risks, uncertointies ond assumptions, including the risk that the
conditions to the completion of the sale of the Speciol Crops Division, including shareholder ond
regulotory approvals, will not be satisfied within the contemplated time frames, the risk thot the qmount

of working capital or poyment in respect thereof witl be less than os at September 30, 2075 ond October

23, 2075 or otherwise less than expected, the risk thot the qmount available for distribution to
shareholders will be less than expected os o result of unforeseen liabilities ond other foctors, qs well os

those foctors referred to in the section entitled "Risk Factors" in the Company's Monagement's
Discussion and Analysis for the period ended December 37, 2014 and in the Circulor which are available
on SEDAR at www.sedar,com qnd should be reviewed in conjunction with this document. The statements
with respect to the estimated distributions to the shqreholders ossume thot the amount paid for the
working capital will not be less than the working copital of LWI os ot September 30, 2075 ond that other
adjustments to the purchase price will not result in o reduction to the purchase price payable in respect

of the Speciat Crops Division or the qmount available for distribution to shareholders. The statements
reloting to the est¡mated distributions to shareholders also assume thot the sale of the Special Crops

Division witt be completed and that any odjustment to the sole price will not exceed proiections, ond that
toxes, expenses and liabilities of the Company will not exceed internol estimates. Such statements are

subject to significant uncertointies. The statements with respect to working capital os ot October 23,

20L5 assume that no negative moterial adverse changes hove occurred to working copitalÍrom the

working capitol as ot September 30, 201.5. The statements with respect to the proposed divestiture of
PCC ossume that porties will enter into binding agreements in respect thereto ond complete the
proposed divesture ond terminote the PCC Processing Agreement on terms which do not result in LWI

being responsible for ony odditional payment to Scoular or for ony severance obligations in respect of
certqin employees of PCC. Although the Company believes the ossumptions inherent in forward-looking
statements are reosonable, undue relionce should not be ploced on these stotements, which only opply

as of the dote of this press release. The Compony expressly disclaims any intention or obligotion to
updote or revise any forward-looking statements, whether os a result of new information, future events

or otherwise, except in accordonce with applicable securities lows.

For additional information, please contact:

Lauren Moran
Manager, lnvestor Relations
investors@ legu mexwal ker.com
(4zsl 2so-t498

Lawrence Chamberlain
NATIONAL Equicom
lchamberlain@nationalequicom,ca
(4L6) 848-L4s7
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Legumex Walker Completes Sale of Special Crops Assets to Scoular

and Changes its Name to "LWP Capital lnc."

WINNIPEG, MB (November 23, 2Ot5) - Legumex Walker lnc. (TSX: LWP)

("Legumex Walker" or the "Company") today announced that it has

completed the previously announced sale of the assets of the Company's

Special Crops Division ("the Special Crops Transaction") to The Scoular

Company ("Scoular") for gross proceeds of CADS94 million, less closing and

post-closing adjustments, plus CAD571.5 million, which represents a

preliminary estimate for the amount of net working capital at closing, paid in

cash. Shareholders at a Special Meeting overwhelmingly approved the

Special Crops Transaction on November 9, 2015. The final purchase price

payable is expected to be determined within 90 days upon determination of

the final closíng working capital in accordance with the Asset Purchase

Agreement dated September L4, 2015.

"This is the culmination of four years of hard work combining several of the

premier companies in North America into a formidable Special Crops

platform," said Joel Horn, Legumex Walker's President & CEO, "We are proud

of what we have accomplished and look forward to seeing that platform

continue to grow with Scoular's expertise and leadership."

According to Chuck Elsea, Scoular's Chief Executive Officer, "We've been

looking to enter the special crops market for some time, and we're thrilled to

finalize the purchase of a business that brings a wealth of special crops

experience and expertise to our growing company. We will invest additional

resources to expand the business and pursue opportunities that result in more

value for growers and a high-quality, reliable supply of specialty products for

customers around the globe."

The Company previously estimated that the net amount available for

distribution to shareholders to be Sf.6S to 51.98 per share (after deducting

estimated taxes, all corporate and Special Crops Division related debt and all

wind-up and transaction related expenses as set out under the heading "Use

1



of Proceeds from the Sale Transaction" in the Company's Management

lnformation Circular dated October L2,20!5, as amended). The Company will

be able to update its estimate of the net amount available for distribution to

shareholders once the final purchase price has been determined based on

final working capital.

The Company expects the Common Shares to be delisted from the TSX on the

date specified by the TSX following an expedited delisting review. The

Company expects the effective date of the delisting of Common Shares will be

by December 31-, 2OI5 (approximately 30 days following the completion of the

expedited delisting review).

The Company expects to file articles of amendment changing its name to

"LWP Capital lnc." on November 24, 2015 and its new CUSIP number is

502464100 and its new lSlN is CA5024641006. The Company expects that the

plan of liquidation approved by the shareholders on November 9, 20L5 will

become effective by December 31, 2015 or early in January 20L6. Although an

interim distribution to shareholders is expected to be made during the second

quarter of 20t6, its final distribution is not expected prior to the completion

of the liquidation period in 20t7.

Readers are cautioned that there is risk that the amount of working capital or

payment in respect thereof pursuant to the Sale Transaction will be less than

as estimated at closing or September 30, 2OL5 or otherwise less than

expected, resulting in the transaction value being less than antic¡pated, and a

risk that the amount available for distribution to shareholders will be less than

expected as a result of unforeseen liabilities. The closing and post-closing

adjustments, include the payment of fees relating to insurance policies,

deductions in respect of accounts receivable of Pacific Coast Canola, LLC

("PCC,), environmental and real estate related costs.

Further information regarding the Special Crops Transaction and its
anticipated effects on Legumex Walker are contained in the Management

lnformation Circular dated October !2,20].5, as amended, which is available

on www.sedar.com.
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Update on the PCC Transaction

The Company is targeting to complete the proposed divestiture of its interest

in Pacific Coast Canola LLC by the end of this week. The Company will not

realize any proceeds from the divestiture.

About Scoular

A L23-year old company with nearly S0 b¡ll¡on in sales, Scoular operates 130+

independent business units that provide diverse supply chain solutions for

end-users and suppliers of grain, feed ingredients, and food ingredients

around the globe. From more than 120 offices and facilities, L200+ employees

are engaged in the business of buying, selling, storing, and processing grain

and ingredients as well as manag¡ng transportation and logistics worldwide.

For further information, visit www.scoular.com'

Cautionary Note on Forward-looking Stqtements

This press release contains "forward-looking information" within the meoning

of Canadion securities laws which moy include, but is not limited to,

statements reloting to the determination of closing working capital, the final
purchose price, the timing of the delisting of the Common Shares, the name

chonge of the Company, the timing ond qmount of distributions to

shareholders, the effectiveness of the plon of liquidotion, the divestiture of its

interest in PCC, ond Scoular's future plans. Such forword-looking information

reflects the Compony's views with respect to future events ond is subiect to

risks, uncertointies and assumptions, including the risk thot the divestiture of

its interest in PCC will not be completed within the time frome contemplated

or on terms previously announced ond the risk thot PCC will not be in

complionce with the terms of its credit focilities ond reloted forbeorances, the

risk that the net proceeds of the sale of the Speciol Crops Division will be less

thon previously disclosed ond expenses of the Company will exceed the

omount estimoted by the Compony, the risk thot distributions to shoreholders

witl be delayed, the risk that the pton of liquidotion will become effective loter

thon expected, the risk thot the closing working capitol will not be determined

within the time frame expected, ond=the risk thot notwithstanding the fact that

the Company witt not realize qny proceeds from the divestiture of its interest
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in pCC, the Company or its subsidiaries moy incur costs and obligations in

respect of such divestiture, os well as those factors referred to in the section

entitled "Risk Foctors" in the Company's Management lnformation Circular

dated October 1.2, 20L15 as omended by the Addendum doted October 26,

2075, in the Management's Discussion and Analysis for the period ended

September 30, 201,5 ond in the Annuol tnformation Form dated March 3L,

20LS which qre ovoiloble on SEDAR qt www.sedar.com and should be reviewed

in conjunction with this press release. The Company's expectation with respect

to the the net omount ovoilable for distribution to shareholders ond timing for
such distributions assume that the final working capital is not less than os at

September 30, 20L, expenses of the Compony will not exceed the qmount

expected and the Company will receive the necessary opprovals for such

distributions, The Compony's expectotion with respect to the divestiture of its
,interest in PCC ossume that the-divestiture of its interest in PCC will be sotisfied
' or waived by the anticipated closing date ond PCC's lenders will continue to
'forbear in respect of the enforcement of the credit facilíties, Although the

Compony hqs attempted to identify important factors that could couse octual

octions, events or results to differ moterially from those described in forword-
tooking statements, there moy be other factors thqt cause actions, events or

results not to be as onticipoted, estimated or intended. There can be no

ctssurance thot forward-looking statements will prove to be accurote os actuol

results ond future events could differ materiolly from those anticipoted in such

stqtements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliqnce on forward-
tooking stqtements. Although the Compony believes the qssumptions inherent

in forward-tooking statements ore reasonable, undue reliance should not be

placed on these statements, which onty apply as of the dote of this press

release. The Compqny expressly disclaims any intention or obligation to updote

or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new

informotion, future events or otherwise, except in occordonce with applicoble

securities laws.

For additional information, please contact:

Lauren Moran
Manager, lnvestor Relations

¡nfo@lwpci.com
(42s12so-1498

Lawrence Chamberlain
NATIONAL Equicom

lchamberlain@ national.ca
(4L6) 848-t4s7
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IN THE MATTER OF THE LIQUIDATION OF LWP CAPITAL INC. PURSUANT TO SECTION 211 OF THE CANADA BUSINESS

CORPORATIONS ACt R.S.C. 1985, c- C-44, AS AMENDED

KSV ADVISORY INC. IN ITS CAPACITY AS LIQUIDATOR OF LWP CAPITAL INC.

and

APPLICANT

Court File No. CV-16-1I242-00CL

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

(COMMERCTAL LIST)

PROCEEDING COMMENCED AT
TORONTO

SUPPLEMENTARY APPLICATION RECORD

BORDEN LADNER GERVAIS LLP
Scotia Plaz4 Suite 4400
40 King Street West
Toronto, Ontario
M5H 3Y4

Edmond F. B. Lamek (LSUC#: 33338U)

Tel: 416367 6311
Fax: 416.3612436

Lawyers for LWP Capital Inc.


